Lake Park Town Commission, Florida

Regular Commission Meeting Minutes

Commission Chamber, Town Hall, 535 Park Avenue, Lake Park, FL 33403
Wednesday, April 16, 2025 6:30 pm

Roger Michaud . Mayor

Michael Hensley . Vice Mayor
John Linden . Commissioner
Michael O'Rourke L Commissioner
Judith Thomas L Commissioner
Richard J. Reade L Town Manager
Thomas J. Baird L Town Attorney
Vivian Mendez, MMC Town Clerk

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to appeal
any decision of the Town Commission, with respect to any matter considered at this meeting,
such interested person will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony
and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilities requiring
accommodations in order to participate in the meeting should contract the Town Clerk’s office
by calling 881-3311 at least 48 hours in advance to request accommodations.

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
6:34 P.M.

PRESENT

Mayor Roger Michaud

Vice Mayor Michael Hensley
Commissioner Judith Thomas
Commissioner John Linden

Commissioner Michael O'Rourke

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge was led by Mayor Michaud.

April 16, 2025 Page 1



APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

The Mayor announced that the organizer of the Florida Hemp Festival has pulled their
application for the event. He also announced that the three proclamations that are on the Consent
Agenda where placed there because there was no representative available to accept the
proclamations.

Commissioner O'Rourke asked that Consent Agenda item number 10 be pulled for discussion.
Motion to approve the agenda made by Vice Mayor Hensley, Seconded by Commissioner
Linden.

Voting Yea: Mayor Michaud, Vice Mayor Hensley, Commissioner Thomas, Commissioner

Linden, Commissioner O'Rourke.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION/REPORT:
NONE

PUBLIC COMMENT:

This time is provided for addressing items that do not appear on the Agenda. Please complete a
comment card and provide it to the Town Clerk so speakers may be announced. Please remember
comments are limited to a TOTAL of three minutes.

-Katia Zhestkova — Thanked the Commission for the study that was done for the downtown area.
She also commented on the previous Commission Meeting and the tone of Commissioner
O'Rourke.

-Michael Steinhauer spoke about a new public safety initiative that he proposes. He also
supports not moving forward with the proposed downtown development.

-Ralph Moscoso spoke about Commissioner O'Rourke in regards to campaign contributions.
-Kervens Jean-Baptiste opposes high-rise development on 10th and Park Avenue.

-Terence Davis spoke passionately about development in town.

-Alice Naegele spoke about not being in favor of a 13 story development.

April 16, 2025 Page 2



CONSENT AGENDA:
All matters listed under this item are considered routine and action will be taken by one

motion.

There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner or person so

requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order of business and

considered in its normal sequence on the agenda. Any person wishing to speak on an agenda item

is asked to complete a public comment card located on either side of the Chambers and given to

the Town Clerk. Cards must be submitted before the item is discussed.

1.

2
3
4.
5

11.
12.

13.

14.

15.

Regular Commission Meeting Minutes - April 2, 2025

Proclamation - Verdenia C. Baker - Retiring Palm Beach County Administrator
Proclamation - Water Conservation Month - April 2025.

Proclamation - Water Reuse Week - May 18, 2025 to May 24, 2025.

Resolution 11-04-25 - Amendment No. 1 - Disaster Debris Management and Support
Services — Phillips and Jordan, Inc. (SWA Agreement #22-201C)

Resolution 12-04-25 - Amendment No. 1 - Disaster Debris Management and Support
Services — CrowderGulf Joint Venture, Inc. (SWA Agreement #22-201B)

Resolution 13-04-25 - Amendment No. 1 - Disaster Debris Management and Support
Services — DRC Emergency Services, LLC (SWA Agreement #22-201D)

Resolution 14-04-25 - Amendment Number 1 - Disaster Debris Management and Support
Services - Thompson Consulting Services, LLC (SWA Agreement #22-202).

Resolution 17-04-25 - Piggyback Agreement - Storm Drain Cleaning, Repairs, and
Maintenance Services - Shenandoah General Construction, LLC

Resolution 19-04-25 - Revise Designation of Signatories for Town Bank Accounts
Resolution 20-04-25 - Grant Agreement - Lake Park Septic to Sewer Conversion Project

- Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) - $1,000,000

Special Request — Limited Overnight Parking - Lake Harbour Towers North
Condominium Association - 501 Lake Shore Drive

Amendment - Plan Documents and Plan Termination - Corebridge Financial
Institutional Services (Current Town Pension Plan)

Reallocation of Grant Funding - Southern Outfall Pipe Replacement Project - Foster
Marine Contractors, Inc. - $3,456,696.30 (FDEO & FDEP Grant Awards)

April 16, 2025 Page 3



Motion to approve remaining items on consent made by Commissioner O’Rourke. Seconded

by Commissioner Thomas. Voting Aye: All.

Item # 10 was pulled for discussion
10. Resolution 18-04-25 Approval of Work Order for Kimley-Horn and Associates for the
Conceptual Design of the Alleyways on the 700 and 800 Blocks of Park Avenue North.
Commissioner O’Rourke stated that Kimley-Horn should not be given this contract partially
due to the fact that they are no longer located locally and they are being paid for something
that has already been done. The Commission was unclear about what areas the previous
study covered. Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) Administrator Allison Justice
clarified that the parking study that had been done was a part of the master plan for future
potential parking locations. She stated that they would like to move forward with the design
of additional parking in the downtown area to see how much it would cost. Commissioner
Linden asked if the contract with Kimley-Horn includes a provision for airfare. Kimley-
Horn Representative Jonathan Hague advised that their headquarters is located in North
Carolina, but they have offices locally and there is no need for airfare. Vice Mayor Hensley
asked if there would be airfare needed for any future projects. Mr. Hague stated he is
unaware of any staff needing airfare, but if it was needed, the cost would be included in
their fee. Commissioner Thomas stated that it appears Kimley-Horn has a full office and
professional staff in the local area. She also clarified that what is being requested is a work
order for the design of a parking area which is different from the parking studies that were
previously done in the master plan which did not include a design aspect. CRA
Administrator Justice stated that this was correct. Commissioner Thomas asked if the CRA
could afford to do this $19,000 project. CRA Administrator Justice stated that yes, the CRA
can afford this project. Commissioner Thomas also asked if there are other service
providers that the CRA utilizes. CRA Administrator stated that the service providers with
the Town have already been qualified and approved for future projects.

Public Comment:

Terence Dauvis stated for the record that he had previously committed to gifting the Town
some parking spaces. He also spoke about the downtown area being too dark allowing

people to break into properties.

April 16, 2025 Page 4



Motion to approve Resolution 18-04-25 made by Commissioner Thomas, Seconded by
Commissioner Linden.

Voting Yea: Mayor Michaud, Vice-Mayor Hensley, Commissioner Thomas, Commissioner
Linden.

Voting Nay: Commissioner O'Rourke.

PUBLIC HEARING(S) - ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING:
16. Ordinance 02-2025

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF LAKE PARK,
FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 78-142 OF CHAPTER 78 PERTAINING TO
PAVING AND MAINTENANCE STANDARDS FOR DRIVEWAYS; PROVIDING
FOR A VESTING PERIOD; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN
CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
Town Manager Reade summarized the item (Exhibit A). Mayor Michaud asked if the
grant will still be available for those still wishing to update their driveway. Town
Manager Reade stated that yes, the grant was still available. Town Manager Reade also
stated that in regards to driveway maintenance, the Town would be seeking to
communicate and educate residents regarding their driveways moving forward.
Commissioner Linden asked if there was a time limit for the grant.
Community Development Director Nadia DiTommaso stated that the grant will remain
available and will not expire. Commissioner Linden asked how the remaining residents
with gravel driveways will be notified. Community Development Director DiTommaso
stated that they will continue to be notified via direct mail. Commissioner Thomas
asked about any restrictions that the grant would impose on the residents and believes
that the grant restrictions may need to be modified. Community Development Director
DiTommaso stated that she had already been in discussion with the Town Manager
regarding relaxing the grant restrictions. Commissioner O’Rourke suggested removing
the restriction within the motion. Vice Mayor Hensley thanked the Commission for

removing the burden off of the residents in regards to the gravel driveways.

April 16, 2025 Page 5



Commissioner Thomas stated that she would like the grant to be available to home-
owners, not renters.

Motion to approve Ordinance 02-2025 with the restriction of selling the property
removed and including the homestead provision made by Commissioner O'Rourke,
Seconded by Commissioner Linden.

Voting Yea: Mayor Michaud, Vice-Mayor Hensley, Commissioner Thomas,
Commissioner Linden, Commissioner O'Rourke.

Town Attorney Baird read the Ordinance by title only.

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING (RESOLUTION): NONE

NEW BUSINESS:
17. Special Event Request - Florida Hemp Festival

Removed from the agenda.

18. Special Event Request - Haitian Flag Day Celebration
Special Events Director Riunite Franks summarized the request (Exhibit B).
Commissioner Thomas and Mayor Michaud disclosed that they are working with the
event organizers. Commissioner Thomas requested that the organizer not have to come
back every year to make this request. She stated she is in support of the request but she
feels that the organizers should have to pay for the four staff members to assist with the
event. Commissioner Linden asked if this was a Town event. Special Events Director
Franks stated that it is not a Town sponsored event. Commissioner Linden proposed
having the organizer pay for staff’s time.
Motion made to approve the request excluding the cost of $1152.00 by Commissioner
Linden, Seconded by Vice Mayor Hensley.
Voting Yea: Mayor Michaud, Vice Mayor Hensley, Commissioner Thomas,
Commissioner Linden.

Voting Nay: Commissioner O'Rourke.

April 16, 2025 Page 6



19. Resolution 21-04-25 - Work Order Agreement - Park Avenue Downtown District
(PADD) Planning and Engineering Study - Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - $50,000.
Community Development Director DiTommaso provided a summary of the item (Exhibit
C). Ruben Cruz, Planner from Kimley-Horn discussed the scope of work and provided a
time-lime (Exhibit D).

Commissioner O’Rourke asked if this item was done through a budget process.
Community Development Director DiTommaso stated that it was done through a budget
process back in September of 2024. Commissioner O’Rourke stated that he is not sure
why this item is before them because it seems that the decision had already been made.
Commissioner O’Rourke asked about two open litigation cases against the Town
regarding density and why there has not been an executive session with the Commission
regarding those. Town Attorney Baird advised that the two cases were not related to this
item. Commissioner O’Rourke asked for clarification regarding what the $50,000 is for.
Town Attorney Baird stated that there were concerns with various components of the
density issue and there was a zoning in progress put into place to study the various issues,
which created the need to hire Kimley-Horn on a continuing services basis as a planning
firm and is not aware of a specific study that was done on density previously. Town
Attorney Baird stated that in March 2025 the Commission verbally approved the retention
of Kimley-Horn and this item is the direct result of that verbal approval. Commissioner
Thomas asked how staff is getting the word out about the upcoming density workshop.
Community Development Director DiTommaso stated there were direct mailers sent out.
Commissioner Thomas suggested the use of a local creole radio station and a local
Spanish radio station to get the information out. She also suggested the use of posting
notices throughout Town. Chief Public Information Officer/Grant Writer Merrell
Angstreich stated she would look into the costs associated with the suggestions. Vice
Mayor Hensley suggested the use of banners throughout town. Commissioner Linden
asked if a study has been done previously on density. Community Development Director
DiTommaso stated that there have been no consultants involved with this previously. She

stated that they were able to move forward without studies because there had been a

April 16, 2025 Page 7



previous mixed use project and they were able to utilize information from that study,
where they were able to compile data and time-lines for the downtown area.
Commissioner O’Rourke asked if notices were sent out to all of the businesses in Town.
Community Development Director DiTommaso advised that all property owners would
have received notification. Chief Public Information Officer/Grant Writer Angstreich
stated that she adds all new businesses to her email list every month. Mayor Michaud
asked if the Town still utilizes code red for communications. Chief Public Information
Officer/Grant Writer Angstreich advised that the Town does still utilize code red, but they
have made some improvements. Mayor Michaud asked if code red could be utilized to
notify the Town about this workshop. Chief Public Information Officer/Grant Writer
Angstreich stated she would create the notice and that there are currently about 5000
recipients through code red. Commissioner Thomas suggested using code enforcement
to spread the word. Commissioner O’Rourke asked if the approval of this item would
affect the zoning in progress. Community Development Director DiTommaso advised
that this action would not affect the zoning in progress and that the zoning in progress is
scheduled to end on May 19, 2025.

Public Comment:

-Mary Beth Taylor spoke about the negative consequences for Town residents as a result of
high rise development in Town.
-Terence Davis spoke about businesses closing in Town and also about having residents tour
the downtown area.
Commissioner O’Rourke stated he is in favor of the development because it will save this
town. Commissioner Linden feels that the residents should be able to interact with the
Town during the workshop, not just a 3 minute comment.
Motion to approve Resolution 21-04-25 made by Commissioner Linden, Seconded by
Commissioner Thomas.
Voting Yea: Mayor Michaud, Vice-Mayor Hensley, Commissioner Thomas,
Commissioner Linden.

Voting Nay: Commissioner O'Rourke.

April 16, 2025 Page 8



TOWN ATTORNEY, TOWN MANAGER, COMMISSIONER COMMENTS:

-Town Attorney Baird had no comments.

-Town Manager Reade advised of upcoming office closures within the Town and announced the
following; Easter Eggstravaganza upcoming, Arbor Day celebration coming up with tree
planting, sunset celebration, community workshop coming up on Saturday in Town Hall,
excellent meeting with the Business Development Board.

-Commissioner O'Rourke stated he is having a difficult time. Tonight was difficult being
accused of being a tool of the developers and that he represents residents and families.
-Commissioner Thomas asked if the Town does minimal commercial maintenance standards.
Town Manager Reade and Community Development Director DiTommaso stated that it is
addressed ongoing. Commissioner Thomas spoke about various issues such as trash, bad
landscaping, etc. that needs to be addressed and suggests internal inspections to find and correct
these things. Commissioner Thomas spoke about the learning curve when a Commissioner is
first elected, but that does not reflect on the decisions that are being made for the community.
She stated that she will continue to represent the people that elected her to the dais.
-Commissioner Linden spoke about a great time at the ground-breaking event and mentioned the
upcoming Arbor Day event and the Lake Park Historic Society event.

-Vice Mayor Hensley spoke about placing signs for new businesses in town and about putting
together a hurricane preparedness guide.

-Mayor Michaud welcomed Oceana Coffee to Town. He also provided information about the
application process for volunteer boards in Town. Mayor Michaud welcomed PBSO Adam

Pozsonyi back to Lake Park. He also announced the Haitian Flag Day Celebration on May 17,

REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS:

Mayor Michaud would like to discuss speed bumps at a future meeting.

April 16, 2025 Page 9



ADJOURNMENT:

Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Thomas, seconded by Vice Mayor Hensley.
Voting aye: All
Meeting adjourned 9:03 pm.

FUTURE MEETING DATE: Next Scheduled Regular Commission Meeting will be held on
May 7, 2025.

Mayor Roger D. Michaud
Town Seal

Deputy Town Clerk, Laura Weidgans

Approved on this of , 2025

April 16, 2025 Page 10



